Attachment 2

Heritage Officer’'s Statement of Significance for the Carleton Sheldon
Residence

Description of Historic Place

The 1914 Carleton Sheldon Residence is a one and one-half storey, Craftsman-style
residential building, constructed on a rectangular plan with a long facade. It has
wood shingle siding on all four elevations. The roof is a low-pitch, side-facing gable,
with projecting eaves and verges, knee brackets and original wood soffits and fascia.
The facade is dominated by a large dormer with a gable roof, and there is an open
verandah. The house is located on the north side of 111 Avenue, west of 60 Street,
in the historic Highlands neighbourhood. The address of the home was 6018 Jasper
Avenue until 1949, when it became 6018 - 111 Avenue in 1950.

Heritage Value

Built in 1914, the Carleton Sheldon Residence is valued for its association with the
early development of the Highlands neighbourhood during Edmonton’s population
boom prior to the First World War. The area comprising the Highlands
neighbourhood was once referred to as the “lower settlement” in the 1880s, and
was owned by three Hudson’s Bay Company employees. The land was bought out
by businessman J.A. McDougall in 1888. In 1910, developers Magrath, Holgate and
Company, who were acting on behalf of McDougall, sponsored a contest to find a
new name for the area. A 19-year-old law clerk, S. Loughlin, suggested the winning
name of “The Highlands”, and was awarded a prize of $50 in gold. The name
reflected the location of the area on the banks of the North Saskatchewan River.
Later in 1910, Magrath and Holgate began marketing the area as Edmonton’s
newest “high class” neighbourhood. The key features to the appeal of the
community were its beautiful setting on the banks of the river, large lots with room
for landscaping, and a required minimum house cost of $2,500 to ensure a high
standard of living. The connections the community had to Edmonton’s street railway
and new connections to electricity, sewer and water systems were also major selling
points. Magrath and Holgate bought out McDougall's interest in the land in 1913.

Historically, the Carleton Sheldon Residence represents a period of time in
Edmonton's history which featured rapid economic expansion, unbridled optimism
for future development and a desire for Edwardian elegance in social endeavors and
in architecture. The nouveau riche of the community wanted to display their
new-found wealth in styles popular in the eastern parts of the country. Lavish new
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suburbs such as the Highlands were an attempt to provide an element of upper
class taste to the now burgeoning city of Edmonton.

Edmonton’s population grew rapidly in the first few years of the community, rising
from 24,000 in 1909 to over 76,000 in 1914. The demand for real estate was intense
- in Highlands, over $35,000 worth of lots was sold in the first day on the market.
Magrath and Holgate invested over $10,000 in services in the area, but despite the
demand for land, by 1912, only a few houses had actually been built. In late 1912,
Magrath and Holgate began building 24 houses on speculation. Other features, like
a commercial block, a curling rink and a small office were built, helping to double
the number of houses built, but the area was still sparsely developed. Despite their
enthusiasm and personal investment (including their own large mansions on Ada
Boulevard), in 1913, a world-wide recession hit Edmonton. Coupled with the onset
of the First World War, the real estate market collapsed. By the 1920s, the City was
selling properties to recover unpaid taxes. Despite this, the amenities of the
community continued to be attractive, and over time, as the economy improved and
Edmonton continued to grow, development in the area took hold.

The Carleton Sheldon Residence is further valued as an early and excellent example
of the Craftsman architectural style. It is one of the best-preserved examples of this
style in the community. Design elements include the wood shingle siding on all four
elevations, from the foundation up to the gable peaks. The roof is a low-pitch,
side-facing gable, and features deep projecting eaves and verges, with knee
brackets and a slight bellcast curve. The front facade is dominated by a large gable
dormer, also clad in wood shingles with projecting eaves and rafters. The dormer
has a tripartite window on the front facade, with single window openings on the
sides. All windows are in a 8-over-1 configuration. The lower level of the facade
features a large, open veranda. The window and door openings are slightly
asymmetrical relative to the veranda arrangement. The lower level of the facade
features a double window on the east side (in a 10-over-1 arrangement), and a
single window on the west side (in a 12-over-1 arrangement). The main entry
features sidelights on either side of the door. The open verandah is supported by
four tapered columns, and open railings with a wide staircase. The lower portion of
the veranda is clad in rusticated pre-cast stone, which carries around all four
elevations along the foundation.

The west elevation features original windows in a variety of configurations, including
a large bay window with a shallow shed roof. The north (rear) elevation also features
original window openings, and some original windows. A small shed-roof addition
has been constructed, and a large brick chimney is located on the west side of this
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facade. The east elevation also features original window openings, and some
original windows, in a variety of configurations.

The residence is associated with Carleton Sheldon, a local manager in the coal
industry. In June 1914, Sheldon obtained a $3,500 building permit for the house, and
took residence with his wife, Bessie, starting in 1915. Born in the United States,
Sheldon went to university and taught in America before moving to Toronto in 1906.
In 1913, he relocated to Edmonton, and started the role as general manager of the
Western Foundry and Machine Co., of which William Magrath was vice-president.
While Sheldon was general manager, the foundry made shell casings used by
Canadian Forces in France during the First World War. Sheldon was named business
manager of the Humberstone Coal Company in 1916. In 1922, Sheldon started
working for Coal Sellers Ltd., but in 1932, he left to start his own company, the
Sheldon Coal Co. He continued working in the coal industry until his death in 1943;
the Sheldon Coal Co. continued to operate until 1951.

Bessie Sheldon lived in the home until 1949. Between 1950 and 1956, the property
changed hands, until 1957, when Michael and Nancy Power moved into the home.
Michael was president of M.K. Power & Co., an insurance brokerage. At a time when
it was not easy for women to enter the business world, Nancy immersed herself in
business, where she participated as a full equal with her male counterparts.
Involving herself first in insurance and then commercial property investment and
management, she carved out a niche renting to people when no one else would,
and was well known to and loved by her tenants whom she visited often. Nancy was
also an advocate within politics and the arts. She worked for decades with the
Liberal Party both locally and nationally, and served her local community through
the Highlands Community League and founded the Highlands Historical Society. She
was active with the Board of Family Service Association, and served on Canada's
National Capital Commission. She was a founder, board president and supporter of
Theatre Network and served on Canada's National Theatre School's Board of
Governors, efforts that led to the Sterling Award for "Outstanding Contribution to
Theatre in Edmonton" in 2009. Nancy lived in the home until her passing in 2019.

Character-Defining Elements

Key character-defining elements of the Carleton Sheldon Residence include:

e Form, scale and massing as expressed by its one and one-half storey height

e Wood frame construction with Craftsman design

e Location on the north side of 111 Avenue, west of 60 Street, in the Highlands
neighbourhood
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Side-facing gable roof with a low pitch

Wood shingle cladding on all four elevations

Wood shingle roofing

Deep projecting eaves and verges, with a slight bellcast curve and knee

brackets, and wood soffits and fascia

e Large gable dormer on front facade, with wood shingle cladding and
projecting eaves and rafters

e Tripartite window on the front of the dormer with single windows on each
side, all in an 8-over-1 format

e Double window on the east side (in a 10-over-1 arrangement), and a single
window on the west side (in a 12-over-1 arrangement) on lower level of
facade

e Asymmetrical arrangement of windows and main entrance door relative to
the veranda

e Open veranda on lower level, supported by four tapered columns with open
railings and a wide staircase

e Main front entry door with sidelights on each side

e Rusticated pre-cast stone cladding on lower portions of veranda and at
foundation level on all four elevations

e Original fenestration pattern on west, north and east elevations, with some
original windows

e Large bay window with shallow shed roof on west elevation, with three single
window openings, all in a 8-over-1 configuration

e Small, shed roof addition on the north elevation

e Large brick chimney on north elevation
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